
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

    BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

FEBRUARY 20, 2025 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 6, 2025

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List

C. Approve January Board Compensation

D. Approve Robards attending the WateReuse Symposium in Tampa Bay, FL on March 16-19

E. Approve Change Order for Biosolids Land Applicaton Services

F. Approve Award of Contract for Battery Energy Storage (BESS) Rebid

G. Approve Change Order for Rafael Meadows Pump Station Fencing Improvements

H. Approve Purchase of 12 Sets of Biowheel Chains and Sprockets

I. Approve Adopting Ordinance 198  Amending Title 1 Chapter 3 Purchasing Policy

J. Approve Resolution 2025-2346 Board Policy O-30 Emergencies

K. Approve Resolution 2025-2347 Project Approval and Notice of Exemption Effluent Disposal Marsh
Pond Cattails Maintenance

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through H. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through K. 

4:05 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:00 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


February 20, 2025 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Operations Department Report – written

3. Engineering Department Report – written

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee,
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. LAVROV
a. Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,
b. McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,

Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

5. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

6. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

7. ADJOURNMENT

5:30 PM 

4:15 PM 

5:35 PM 

5:45 PM 

5:00 PM 

2



February 20, 2025 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: MARCH 6 AND MARCH 20, 2025 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before February 17, 2025 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on February 20, 2025 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: February 13, 2025 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, 
San Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable disability-
related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, to help ensure accessibility to 
this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Gary E. Robards,  President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

2/20/2025 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: February 20, 2025 

Re: Approve Change Order for Biosolids Land Application Services 2024 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve change order in the amount of $225,000 to Custom Tractor Service (CTS) for a 
one-year extension for the Biosolids Land Application Services 2024 project. 
 

BACKGROUND 
In October 2024, CTS completed Year 2 of the three-year biosolids land application program 
within the contracted amount of $225,000. The project provided the application of biosolids for 
agricultural purposes in the reclamation area and preparation of reports to satisfy the conditions 
outlined in the Notice of Applicability (NOA) permit issued by the Regional Water Board. Also 
included in the contract with CTS was assisting Purdue University with miscellaneous tasks for 
the USEPA PFAS research program. 
 

In response to staff request, CTS proposed to provide services for the final Year 3 of the program 
for the same original contracted amount of $225,000 and Time for Completion of 60 days or no 
later than the NOA deadline of October 31, 2025. The basis of the staff request is to avoid the risk 
of not finishing the land application process by the deadline of October 31 of each year set by the 
Regional Water Board. As experienced during Year 1 and Year 2, there was a considerable 
amount of time needed before and after the land application process for sampling, reporting, and 
monitoring by the same contractor as required in the NOA permit. Moreover, the lack of interested 
bidders for this type of project exacerbates the risk of violating the permit. Only one contractor 
(Synagro) submitted a bid for Year 1 and CTS for Year 2. Synagro completed Year 1 in 2023 for 
$396,950. 
 

As such, extending the contract with CTS for the final year should guarantee the timely 
completion of the project and ensure consistent sampling collection by one contractor for the 
PFAS research program.  
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On June 20, 2024, the District Board awarded the contract to CTS for the Biosolids Land 
Application Services 2024 project. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
District staff will allocate $225,000 for biosolids maintenance in FY 2025/2026. 

Item Number_________2E_______ 

GM Review   __________CP______ 

 

24

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org
Mtg. Date: February 20, 2025

Re: Award of Contract to Unified Renewables dba Mars Energy EPC for Battery 
Energy Storage System (BESS) Rebid 

Item Type: Consent    X  Action  Information Other  . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X  No (See attached) Not Applicable    . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the award of a contract to Unified Renewables dba Mars Energy EPC for the 
Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) Rebid project in the amount of $3,099,578 pursuant to 
California Government Code 4217.16. 

BACKGROUND 
On August 17, 2023, the District Board authorized staff to obtain proposals for the design-build of 
the BESS project and pay the initial deposit of $85,000 to PG&E for the Self Generation Incentive 
Program (SGIP) application. Kenwood Energy discussed the details of the project and presented 
an economic evaluation as well as potential grant funding from the Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) 
and rebates from PG&E’s SGIP. The goal was to construct BESS as a follow-up project to the 
then ongoing Solar Photovoltaic System Replacement project through a Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) with ForeFront Power, which has been postponed indefinitely and now replaced 
with a progressive design-build (PDB) project. The Solar Photovoltaic System Replacement Rebid 
is currently out for bids with the bid opening scheduled for February 26, 2025. 

On October 22, 2024, the District received proposals from Staten Solar (San Jose) and Unified 
Renewables dba Mars Energy EPC (Rocklin). Staff and Kenwood Energy evaluated the proposals 
pursuant to California Government Code 4217.16 and deemed the proposal from Mars Energy 
EPC responsive and it meets District requirements. The award of a contract to Mars Energy EPC 
is consistent with Senate Bill (SB) 706, which expanded the use of PDB construction method by 
special districts for any water-related projects effective January 1, 2023. See attached Technical 
Memorandum by Kenwood Energy for the bid evaluation and updated economic analysis. 

As reported by District staff, the benefits of BESS include the following: 
1. Reduced power outages at the treatment plant.
2. Less operator disruption and staff overtime.
3. Lower risk of NPDES permit violations.
4. Enable the future solar PV system and cogeneration to operate during outages.
5. Reduced operation of standby diesel generators.

Item Number_______2F_________ 

GM Review   ___CP_____________ 

25

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On August 17, 2023, the District Board authorized the project and payment of the initial deposit 
to PG&E for the SGIP application. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
The project is relatively small and may be considered “minor” from CEQA’s perspective. It is 
located within the treatment plant. District staff anticipates minimal environmental impact and will 
determine the extents of the required CEQA review after Mars Energy completes the design. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
District Staff will allocate $3,099,578 or an adjusted budget of $1,916,504 in consideration with 
IRA discount and SGIP rebate at an appropriate future fiscal year (currently anticipated FY 27/28) 
after construction of the Solar Photovoltaic System Replacement Rebid project. 
 

 
Figure 1. Location Map 

26



Kenwood Energy   
Energy Management Consulting 

   
PO Box 692  Phone: (707) 695-2158 
Kenwood, CA  95452 
 www.kenwoodenergy.com

   

Memo 
 
To:  LGVSD Staff 
From:  Tim Holmes 
Date:  Feb 7, 2025 
Subject: Proposal Review – Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) Rebid 
 

Kenwood Energy (KE) is recommending that LGVSD enter into a contractual agreement 
with Unified Renewables for the installation of a BESS. 

The District received three proposals in response to the RFP. One was rejected due to a 
late submittal. The other two, Staten Energy and Unified Renewables, were evaluated 
for quantitative benefits, qualitative benefits, and contractor experience. Unified’s 
proposal was not the lowest of the two that were evaluated, but it is recommended for 
the following reasons. 

1. The proposed technology has been operating in the US for more than five years. 

2. The return on investment is significantly higher that what was presented to the 
Board when the Board made the decision to pursue BESS. 

3. The proposed technology requires approximately half of the installation footprint 
of Staten’s bid, and the space is limited. 

4. While Unified is a relatively new company, the staff have been working together 
for many years, and they provided a number of very positive references for 
similarly sized BESS.   

5. Staten’s references were for much smaller BESS. 

The following table summarizes the financial analysis of the two proposals compared to 
the analysis that was presented to the Board on August 17, 2023. 

  

Original 
Analysis - 

8/17/2023 Staten Unified 

Power - Kilowatts 650 500 500 

Energy - kWh 2600 2000 2000 

Capital Cost (5,026,450) ($2,092,000) ($2,519,130) 

20 Yr O&M (696,537) ($580,448) ($580,448) 

Subtotal of Costs (5,722,987) ($2,672,448) ($3,099,578) 

IRA Direct Payment 1,281,745  $711,280  $856,504  

SGIP 1,378,000  $1,060,000  $1,060,000  

Funding Total 2,659,745  $1,771,280  $1,916,504  

Net Cost (3,063,243) ($901,168) ($1,183,074) 

20 Year Savings 2,871,440  $2,527,707  $2,527,707  

Net Present Value (191,803) $1,626,539  $1,344,633  

Internal Rate of 
Return (IRR) -3.2% 18% 11% 

 

27



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: February 20, 2025 

Re: Approve Change Order for Rafael Meadows Pump Station Fencing Improvements 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes           No    (See attached) Not Applicable       X      . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve change order in the amount of $71,045 to DRYCO Construction, Inc. for the 
Rafael Meadows Pump Station Fencing Improvements project. 
 

BACKGROUND 
In response to District staff request, DRYCO Construction submitted a proposal in the amount of 
$71,045 for the replacement of the existing automated gate and portions of adjacent chain link 
fencing at the treatment plant. The new gate and fencing will consist of an upgraded security 
fencing system designated as Impasse II Gauntlet manufactured by Ameristar that the District 
adopted for the treatment plant and pump stations. The project will provide for a continuous 
gauntlet security fencing system south of the treatment plant between McInnis Golf Course Corp 
Yard and Smith Ranch Road. Staff reviewed the proposal and deemed the fee estimate 
reasonable based on an informal bid solicitation conducted by staff. 
  
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Change Order amount of $71,045 is within the budget allocated for fencing in the Annual Site 
Improvement project (Project No. 21600-11) in FY 2024/2025.  
 
 
 

 

Item Number_______2G_________ 

GM Review   ______CP__________ 

 

28

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
Figure 1. New Plant Main Entrance Gate and Fencing  

 

 
Figure 2. Model Impasse II Gauntlet Fence by Ameristar 

 

29



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: February 20, 2025 

Re: Approve Purchase of 12 Sets of Biowheel Chains and Sprockets 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes           No     (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the purchase of 12 sets of chains and sprockets for the Biowheels in the 
amount of $91,732.05. 
 

BACKGROUND 
District staff have determined that chains and sprockets for 10 of the 16 Biowheels are worn out 
and need to be replaced to reduce the risk of sudden failure as experienced with some of the 
Biowheels in the past. Although the chains and sprockets have a quoted useful life of 5 years, the 
Biowheels have only been in service for nearly three years and staff noticed accelerated wear and 
tear. The purchase order for Applied Industrial Technologies consists of 10 sets plus 2 spares of 
redesigned Mac Chain chains and sprockets recommended by Biowheel manufacturer, H2O 
Innovations. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The purchase order amount of $91,732.05 will be covered under a new account created for 
Biowheel maintenance and repair expenses.  
 
 
 

 

Item Number________2H________ 

GM Review   _________CP_______ 

 

30

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Scans\02202025\2I Ordinance 198 Amending Title 1 Chapter 3 Purchasing Policy.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 20, 2025 

Re: Adopt Ordinance Amending Title 1, Chapter 3 to Align With Existing Purchasing 
Policy on Procurement of Supplies and Equipment 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information       Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to adopt Ordinance No. 198 amending Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District Code. 

 
BACKGROUND   
Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Code provides policies and 
procedures governing purchases of supplies, equipment and contractual services by the District. It 
was last updated in 2016. Since that time, the Board has adopted a comprehensive list of policies 
codified into a Policies and Procedures Manual, which includes Board Purchasing Policy F-90. 
 
The Board received information at its February 6, 2025 Board meeting on the benefits of aligning 
its Ordinance Code with Board Purchasing Policy F-90. The following proposed changes would 
align Title 1, Chapter 3 with current practices and acknowledge conformance with the current 
policies in the Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Ordinance 168 – Amending Title 1, Chapter 3 adding Section 207 “Necessary Unique or Sole 
Source Purchases” adopted July 14, 2016. 
 
Board revised and adopted Financial Policy F-90, Purchasing Including Retaining Consultants, 
on September 5, 2024.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  

 
Attachment:  Ordinance No. 198 Title 1, Chapter 3, Policies, Procedures and Bidding Regulations 
Governing Purchase of Supplies and Equipment by Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

Item Number____2I__________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

31

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Ordinance No. 198  Page 1 of 4 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 198 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 1, CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE II, OF THE 

ORDINANCE CODE OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT, 

POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND BIDDING REGULATIONS  

GOVERNING PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT BY LAS  

GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT. 

 

 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, 

does ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1.  The contents of Title 1, Chapter 3, Article II, Purchases,  of the Ordinance Code of 

the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, is amended and replaced in its entirety to read as 

follows: 

 

“ARTICLE II. PURCHASES: 

 

Section 201. Purchases By District. The purchase of supplies and equipment for the 

District or any department, office or other organizational unit thereof shall be made in 

conformity with the applicable provisions of the current purchasing policies in Policy F-90 of the 

District’s codified Policies and Procedures Manual. .  

Section 202. Purchases By the Governing Body of District.  The General Manager 

shall submit to the Board requests for purchase of equipment and/or supplies in amounts that 

exceed the purchasing authority limits set by Policy F-90. If the amount of expenditures is 

estimated to exceed the General Manager purchasing authority, bids shall be solicited by public 

notice, followed by award by the governing body of the District, except where it is exempted by 

state law or allowed by the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA).  The 

method and extent of public notice shall be prescribed by the District Counsel. All bids shall be 

submitted sealed to the District. The Board may reject any or all bids for any or all supplies and 

equipment.  A tabulation of all bids received, whether accepted or rejected, shall be open for 

public inspection for a period of not less than thirty (30) days after the bid opening. In all cases, 

the award shall be made to the lowest responsible bidder. In determining the lowest bidder, the 

governing body of District shall take into consideration the quality offered and its conformity 

with the specifications, the delivery and discount terms and conditions of the bid and other 

32



Ordinance No. 198  Page 2 of 4 

information and data required to prove their responsibility. However, price and quality being 

equal, preference may be given to responsible local bidders.  

Section 203. Contractual Services.  Requests for contractual services by the General 

Manager or any department, office or other organizational unit of District shall be submitted to 

the Board who may negotiate contracts or delegate negotiations for such services as it determines 

are necessary. Contract execution and retention of consultants is guided by the procedures 

established in Policy F-90 of the District. 

Section 204. Emergency Purchases.  Emergency purchases may be authorized by the 

General Manager, or their designee, when the supplies or equipment so purchased are necessary 

for the preservation of life or property. Such emergency purchases shall be submitted to the 

Board for ratification at its next regular meeting.  

Section 205. Gratuities.  The acceptance of any gratuity in the form of cash, 

merchandise, or any other thing of value by an official or any employee of the District from a 

vendor or contractor, or prospective vendor or contractor, shall be a cause for disciplinary action.  

Section 206. Unlawful Purchases.  Except as otherwise provided by law and subject to 

prior approval by the Board, no purchase or supplies, equipment or contractual services shall be 

made in excess of the amount of the appropriations allowed by the budget. 

Section 207. Necessary Unique or Sole Source Purchases. Regardless of the 

requirements of Sections 201 and 202, above, in the event that it is necessary to purchase 

equipment or supplies that is/are unique or can only be purchased from a sole source, 

manufacturer or supplier, regardless if said equipment and/or supplies is/are new, used or 

custom-made, in accordance with § 3400 of the Cal. Public Contract Code, the General Manager or the 

District Board shall make findings that said Sole Source Purchase is necessary for any of the following 

purposes:  

a. In order that a field test or experiment may be made to determine the products suitability for 

future use; 

b. In order to match other products in use on a particular public improvement either completed or in 

the course of completion; 

c. In order to obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source;  

33



Ordinance No. 198  Page 3 of 4 

d. In order to respond to an emergency: 

1) Declared by the Board and approved by a four-fifths vote of the Board; or 

2) Declared by the state, a state agency, or political subdivision of the state and only if the 

reasons for the finding of the emergency are set forth in the minutes of a meeting of the 

Board approving the resolution;  

e. The proposed equipment or supplies conforms with the requirements and/or specifications of the 

District;  

The General Manager may approve sole source purchases within their purchasing authority and 

the District Board may approve the purchase of said equipment or supplies without compliance 

with the competitive bidding or notice procedures thereof pursuant to Section 202, above, or 

State law. 

 

Section 2.  Upon adoption of this Ordinance, it shall be noted in the minutes of the Board of 

Directors, shall be posted on the District’s website, shall be available at the District Office, shall 

be published once in the Marin Independent Journal, and shall take effect immediately upon the 

expiration of thirty (30) days of said publication and posting. 

Section 3.  All other ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is full, true, and correct copy of the Ordinance duly and 

regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on February 20, 2025 by the following 

vote of members thereof: 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

     _________________________________ 

Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary  

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

34



Ordinance No. 198  Page 4 of 4 

APPROVED:  

(seal) 

 

_______________________________________ 

Gary E. Robards, President of Board of Directors 

35



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02202025\Adopt Board Policy O-30\ASR Adopt Policy O-30.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 20, 2025 

Re: Revise Policy O-30 Adding Emergency Declarations by Outside Government 
Bodies and Purchasing Exceptions for Emergencies 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information       Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to adopt revised Board Policy O-30 Emergencies to include a statement on emergency 

declarations by outside government bodies and purchasing exemptions for emergencies.  
 

BACKGROUND   
Board Policy O-30, Emergencies, covers procedures in the event of emergency situations, 
responsibilities of Board and District staff, and communication of public information. Staff 
proposed adding two sections to the policy at the Board meeting of February 6. 
 
Section O-30-25, Emergency Declarations by Outside Government Bodies, is intended to 
acknowledge instances when other governmental agencies declare an emergency or disaster that 
encompasses or impacts the service area of the District, and for which the District may be eligible 
for expenditure reimbursement. 
 
Section O-30-35, Purchasing Exceptions for Emergencies, would allow exceptions to Purchasing 
Policy F-90 to meet immediate and urgent operational demands and for the protection of public 
health and property during the declared emergency. On February 6, the Board provided staff with 
feedback on this section. The example language describing specific purchasing authority threshold 
of $60,000 has been removed and replaced with language on spending authority limits in excess of 
the District’s Purchasing Policy F-90. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Resolution 2023-2299 –Board Policy O-30 Emergencies last adopted February 16, 2023.  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 

Attachment:   Resolution No. 2025-2346 Revising Board Policy O-30 with Exhibit A 
 

Item Number______2J________ 

GM Review   ________CP______ 

36

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-2346 
 

A RESOLUTION REVISING BOARD POLICY O-30 TO ADD EMERGENCY 
DECLARATIONS BY OUTSIDE GOVERNMENT BODIES AND PURCHASING 

EXCEPTIONS FOR EMERGENCIES 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has determined that a comprehensive list of 
Policies and Procedures for the Board is in the best interest of the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has compiled a comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures to 
serve as the rules and regulations of the Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board did adopt such comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures on 
July 9, 2009; and  
 

WHEREAS, such policies may need to be updated from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, acknowledging emergencies or disasters declared by other governmental 

agencies and providing purchasing exceptions to address urgent operational needs during such 
emergencies is in the best interest of the District. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
hereby adopts the revised Board Policy O-30 Emergencies, as attached as Exhibit A. 
  
 If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policies and Procedures is in conflict 
with rules, regulations, or legislation having authority over the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 
said rules, regulations or legislation shall prevail. 
 

The Policies and Procedures shall remain in effect until amended by at least a majority vote 
of the Board of Directors. 
 
 

 *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 
passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 
County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 20th day of February, 2025 by the following 
vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof Members:  
NOES, Members:   
ABSENT, Members:  
ABSTAIN, Members:   

          
    ________________________________ 

      Teresa Lerch, District Secretary  
        
 
APPROVED:             (seal) 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Gary E. Robards, President of Board of Directors 37



EXHIBIT A – Resolution No. 2025-2346 
 

Resolution No. 2025-2346 Date Approved: pending __ 

President of the Board 
 

Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

 

O-30 EMERGENCIES 

Purpose 

This policy covers procedures in the event of emergency situations, responsibilities of Board 

and District staff, and public information.  

 

O-30-10  Informing General Manager. Responding to emergency situations is a critical 

District responsibility. The General Manager shall be immediately informed of the existence 

of any operation, activity, or occurrence which can affect the public health and safety, or 

which can significantly impair the District’s operations. 

 

O-30-20  Emergency Determination. The General Manager, or their designee, shall make 

the decision as to whether an emergency exists. The President, in the General Manager’s or 

designee’s absence, will make this determination. 

 

O-30-25  Emergency Declarations by Outside Government Bodies. Should an 

emergency or disaster declaration be made at the local, State or Federal level, the District 

will take proper action to maximize potential reimbursement should disaster funds become 

available from FEMA, CalOES, or other local sources.  

 

O-30-30  All Reasonable Actions. The General Manager is empowered to take all 

reasonable actions necessary to address the emergency. They may make commitments of 

expenditures or District funds as necessary beyond what is outlined in Board Budget Policy 

F-40. In times of emergency, the General Manager, or their designee, shall make all of the 

proper and necessary notifications for the District at the appropriate local, State and Federal 

level. 

 

O-30-35  Purchasing Exceptions for Emergencies. In the event of a declared local, State, 

or Federal disaster or emergency, the District shall follow its standard purchasing policies, 

but the General Manager or their designee is authorized to allow exceptions to the standard 

purchasing policies of the District, including Purchasing Policy F-90, when immediate action 

is required to meet urgent operational demands and/or to protect public health and property. 

Exceptions could include but are not limited to; allowing for non-competitive procurements 

with proper justification, raising the purchasing authority of department managers, and 

authorizing spending in excess of purchasing limits set in Policy F-90. Proper accounting 

practices are to be followed during declared emergencies, ensuring expenditures are 

documented. 

 

O-30-40  Informing President and Board Members. When the emergency situation is 

under reasonable control, the General Manager, at the earliest possible time, will inform the 

President and then the other Board Members of the emergency situation and the actions 

taken to address it. 

38



   

Resolution No. 2025-2346 Date Approved: pending __ 

President of the Board 
 

Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

 

 

 

O-30-50  Spokesperson. The General Manager will be in the first position for 

communications responding to inquiries about an emergency in responding to inquiries, 

press interviews, and other forms of customers’ contact or outreach. The President of the 

Board of Directors will be in the second position for spokesperson for the District. In every 

case regarding an emergency the General Manager shall make immediate contact with the 

Board President to assure that any and all communications are factual and up-to-date. All 

Board members shall be notified as soon thereafter as possible by District staff.  

 

 

39



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org
Mtg. Date: February 20, 2025

Re: Approve Resolution 2025-2347 Project Approval and Notice(s) of Exemption - 
Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance 

Item Type: Consent    X  Action  Information Other  . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X  No (See attached) Not Applicable    . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Resolution No. 2025-2347, directing staff to file the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Notice(s) of Exemption application with the County Clerk of Marin. 

BACKGROUND 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District) is the lead agency for the following project(s), which 
will be addressed with either the on-call contract with Piazza Construction or UPCCAA bidding 
guidelines: 

1. Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance. The purpose of the project is to
perform routine maintenance of existing facilities that are consistent with the original design
and operation of the Marsh Pond. The work does not alter the overall footprint or function
of the storage basin. Routine maintenance of this nature is anticipated every 2-3 years to
prevent potential mosquito breeding in the basin, at the same time restoring storage
capacity and protecting levees, piping, effluent transfer boxes, and other facilities
constructed under the 1989 Effluent Disposal Project, Unit II (EPA Project No. C-06-2469-
120). The District’s National Pollutant Elimination Discharge Permit (NPDES) No.
CA0037851 issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and
the San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) requires proper
operation and maintenance of all facilities and systems installed or used by the District to
achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.

The project consists of reestablishing the interior pond levee slope and restoring storage volume 
by removing invasive cattails, which have colonized a significant section of the Marsh Pond. 

Pursuant to Guideline 15062 of CEQA, the District may file a Notice(s) of Exemption application 
with the County Clerk of Marin after approval of the project(s). This procedure will be utilized for 
potentially environmentally sensitive projects that warrant filing of Notice of Exemption. 

The project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301 as depicted in the Notice(s) 
of Exemption applications attached and as summarized below. 

Item Number_______2K_________ 

GM Review   _____CP___________ 

40

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

Section Guideline 

15301 Class 1 consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or 
minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, 
or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. 

 
Documents attached include: 

1. Resolution No. 2025-2347 
2. Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance Notice of Exemption Application 

 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

41



Resolution No. 2025-2347 Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION No. 2025-2347 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PROJECTS AT MULTIPLE SITES AND MAKING 
DETERMINATIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

FROM CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) requires a public agency to 
approve or to determine to carry out a project subject to CEQA before filing a Notice of Exemption; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors, by this Resolution, 
approves the Project(s) described below. 
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Board of 
Directors, which finds and determines as follows: 
 

1. Approves the Project(s) described as follows: 
 

a. Project Title: Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance 
 
          2.   Finds that the Project(s) is (are) exempt from CEQA pursuant to the Notice(s) of Exemption 
attached and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
          3.   Finds that no Project(s) is (are) subject to CEQA Guideline 15300.2. 
 
          4.   Directs staff to file the Notice(s) of Exemption pursuant to 15062 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

        I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 

passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, 

California, at a meeting thereof held on February 20, 2025, by the following vote of the members thereof: 

AYES, and in the favor thereof, Members:  

NOES, Members:  

 ABSENT, Members:   

 ABSTAIN, Members: 

____________________________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch, District Secretary, 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
APPROVED: 
          (seal) 
 
__________________________ 
Gary Robards, Board President 

42



Rev 02/07/2025 Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance Notice of Exemtion Page 1 of 243



 

The purpose of the project is to perform routine maintenance of existing facilities that are 
consistent with the original design and operation of the Marsh Pond. The work does not alter the 
overall footprint or function of the storage basin. Routine maintenance of this nature is anticipated 
every 2-3 years to prevent potential mosquito breeding in the basin, at the same time restoring 

luent Disposal Project, Unit II (EPA Project No. C-06-2469-120). The 
District’s National Pollutant Elimination Discharge Permit (NPDES) No. CA0037851 issued by the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the San Francisco Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (Water Board) requires proper operation and maintenance of all facilities and 
systems installed or used by the District to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit. 

The project consists of reestablishing the interior pond levee slope and restoring storage volume by 
 

Rev 02/07/2025 Effluent Disposal Marsh Pond Cattails Maintenance Notice of Exemtion Page 2 of 244



 

 
 

 

2/20/2025 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



 

 
 

 

2/20/2025 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  Human 
Resources Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports 
 

 
LAVROV 

Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

 
 
MURRAY 

Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports  
 
 

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, Human 
Resources Ad Hoc Committee, GM Evaluation Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee, 
Marin Special Districts Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc 
Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Other 
Reports 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

56



                                                                                  AGENDA: ITEM 5A 
                                                                                  DATE: February 20, 2025            

REVISED 09062023 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER CONFERENCE/ 

 MEETING/WEBINAR ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

 

Board Members to register for Webinars and Meetings   

                       YES  NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference only:         

 

Board Directors to make their own Hotel Reservations and book their own 

transportation including airfare, taxi and/or shuttles. 

   

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

57



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02202025\5B Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

2/20/2025 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 5B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67


	2K Resolution 2025-2347  CEQA for Cattails Maintenance.pdf
	NOE Marsh Pond.pdf
	Blank Page





